Town of Berlin
Municipal Office Building
108 Shed Road

Berlin, VT. 05602
Regular Select Board M eetings
1% & 3" Monday of Each Month

Monday, June 6, 2011
6:30 PM

Selectboard Members: Susan Gretkowski, Chair; Rakidaskin, Secretary; Brad Towne, and Jonathan
Goddard. Absent: Nancy Driscoll, Vice Chair. PraseJeff Schulz, Town Administrator; Patti Lewis,
Town Treasurer. All items are unanimous unlessrilse noted.

APPROVED MINUTES

Susan Gretkowski called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

Public Comment
Catherine Donnis thanked the Board for getting the road crew odixtthe road due to the flooding as
soon as possible.

Brad Towne stated thafim Ackerman was concerned that the water could wash out hie drthe storm
drain is overwhelmed agaildeff Schulz stated that he arigichard Tetreault could conduct a site visit to
see what is appropriate for the Town to do in #rag.

Treasurers Report
Patti Lewis gave the Board a preliminary financial report anted that not all of the bills from May have

cleared as yet. She stated that she has not eglceigny flood damage bills as yet, but is tryinggeep
those bills separate from the refetti stated that the current year fund balance is $511which is good
for this time in the budget yeaRichard Tetreault stated that the flood damage costs so far are
approximately $225,000.Susan Gretkowski suggested tabling the review of the budget arehfiral
sheets until the next meeting of the BoaRaitti stated that the warrants include the final paynoéthe
education taxes. She stated that the rate of taeiag paid is still at 95%-96% and she is sending
letters for delinquent taxes to be pafhtti stated that she is seeing good results from sgralihthese
letters.

Old Business

Flood Damage Update

Jeff Schulz stated that last Thursday there was significartding in Berlin, and he has asketthard
Tetreault, Road Superintendent, to give the Board an upatatée roads that were damaged and the
repairs to dateJeff stated that he has also askddef Bill Wolfeto give the Board a quick summary of
the issues pertaining to the Mobile Home Pavk.. Tetreault stated that the road crew has been working
hard on getting the roads back to normal. He dtdtat Bartlett Hill Road and Widow Moses Road are
back to two lanes of traffic, but still needs sonmk. Mr. Tetreault stated that they have been working
on the ditches on Rowell Hill Road and are almastedwith that work. He stated that on Wednesday th
will begin the repaving of Paine Turnpike. Hatetl that the Road Crew will start grading tomorrisiv.
Tetreault stated that they will also be resurfacing Vinee8tr He stated that a culvert had plugged on
Crosstown Road and some minor washouts that sleufiked this weekMr. Tetreault stated that all of
the Town roads are passable, although some ob#usrare rough and need resurfacidgff Schulz




stated that he aridr. Tetreault will conduct site visits and put together a paekemsubmit to FEMA,
once the declaration has been approved.

Chief Bill Walfe, Berlin Police Dept., stated that his departmetpéd evacuate the River Run and Berlin
Mobile Home Parks and they are patrolling River Rtamor as much as possible to keep looting to a
minimum. He noted that the residents of the Mobiteane Park should call them if they see anythinig ou
of the ordinary near them, especially after 7:08.pvhen there should be no individuals near thietsa
that have been damage@hief Wolfe stated that he had to call in more personnel i \wvith the
evacuationSusan Gretkowski stated that the Town has placed a storage containghe property of
Jennie Thompson for any individual to place their salvageable bgiags into, and/s. Thompson has

the key to the storage container. A River Run Pasident asked what is being done to help those
individuals that cannot live in their mobile home3&ff Schulz stated that the Town is working with
different agencies that are assessing the damaglee mobile home park before any decisions can be
made on that issueSusan stated that the Berlin website has a few linkgésidents to gain help in finding
alternate housing and the Barre Housing Partnershijiling to help as well. She stated that RiRRm is
managed by a receiver compahgville Company, and the Town is in discussions with them regaydin
the issues with the park. A resident asked who toeyact to find out if their trailer is salvageaPIChief
Wolfe stated that the Town website has some helpfulbctsifor the residents use for damages to their
property. Jeff Schulz stated that the Town Offices could print off thebpage for the residents so that
they may have those contact numbers. A residemidaskat recourse the residents have to get therowne
or receiver company to step forward and hefp@an suggested that they call Legal Aid for a legahagi
as to the resident’s best course of action. A egidsked if the Town or Neville Company could do
something about raising the river banB&f Schulz stated that it is difficult for the Town to reqair
something like that be done as it is an existinghteorhood, but he could investigate that quedimther

to find out if there is anything that could be done

Bruce Pollock, Red Cross, stated that the Red Cross starteshtier at the Barre Auditorium on
Thursday. He stated that since then the Red ®assent trucks out to provide clean up kits to the
residents, which include buckets, gloves, showetsaher materials that would be needed to clean up
Mr. Pollock stated that the Red Cross is also providing mealter and other essentials for residents that
need these services. He stated thaStuther n Baptist Group is in the area to help residents muck out
their homes, but that residents must call 211 depto be placed on a list and sent out to albtiencies

that will help. Mr. Pollock encouraged all the residents to contact Economrici&s and Central

Vermont Community Action to seek helpustin Pickel, Animal Control Officer, suggested that the
residents that own pets contact the Humane Soaretyother non-profit agencies to help with the cdre
their pets.Susan suggested setting up a meeting with all of theé&@@&ervices agencies in one place at the
school to allow the residents to make those cosité&bberta Haskin suggested holding this meeting at
the Barre Auditorium instead of the school.

Public Hearing - Amendment to Animal Control Ordice

Jeff Schulz stated that this is a public hearing on the amemdsnito the Animal Control Ordinance. He
stated that the original ordinance was adopted s@aes ago and the revisions are recommended by
Justin Pickel, Animal Control Officer. Jeff stated that the revisions include a definitionvbin a dog
may be at large, and a definition of an at largg @®a dog that is not under physical restraiwbotrol.

Mr. Pickel stated that currently the ordinance does not addtegs running into traffic and causing a
safety hazard. He stated that this occurrencetisurrently a violation of the Animal Control Ondince.
Mr. Pickel stated that a leash law would affect those dogisate not on their owners property, but dogs
on other properties or Town property. He stated the revisions are inline with the Animal Control
Ordinance in surrounding townfoug Hill stated that under the current ordinance the Anaaitrol
Officer has the authority to cite the owners obg that is running into traffic. He stated thatdvens land
on both sides of a Town road, and under the revisgitiance he would need to leash his dog to dhess
road to get to the rest of his property.r. Hill stated that the revised ordinance will make vakabut of
quite a number of law abiding citizens in BerlinHe asked what necessitates the revisions to the
ordinance?Mr . Hill stated that the ordinance already regulates iterse and all it needs is enforcement.
Laura Plude stated that every few years the Board tries tateméeash law, and every year it gets voted
down because Berlin is a rural community. Sheedt#ttat the language is already in the currennardie




and just needs enforcemerfBudd Shedaker stated that the new language seems to be aghessers of
the road around Berlin Pond and he does not betfgsés right. He stated that many people usdifBer
Pond to walk or run with their dogs. Paul Ironseashow an at large animal was addressed in therurr
ordinance?Mr. Pickel stated that the current ordinance determinesatatinimal that disturbs the rights
of, threatens the safety of, or injures a membehefyeneral public, or repeatedly allowed to daarather
properties is in violation of the current ordinandde stated that he routinely gives one verbahingyr
before citing a resident in violatiorBusan Gretkowski stated that there seems to be three differentsssu
under discussion, having animals on a leash, uh@eswners control and the way the current ordiaasc
worded. She stated that the residents in attendseera to favor the current ordinance langualgpéf

Schulz stated that the Board is under no obligation t&eredecision on this issue tonight, the Board may
table this item to another meetirfjisan stated that she is inclined not to move forwarthwhie Animal
Control Ordinance as it has been presented tonitgft.stated that he could work on the language in the
ordinance before bringing it back to the Board. stied that the language on the fines is set forth
statute and should propose no problem to adoptiagtdinance with that language includ&iisan
suggested taking out the language which definerge and to move forward with the ordinance tdude
the revised fine structur@onathan Goddard stated that he would like to see a draft of whatBoard

will be voting on instead of what is currently momt of the BoardSusan stated that the Board will not act
on the revised Animal Control Ordinance tonighattreff Schulz, Justin Pickel andDoug Hill will revise
this draft to be brought forward to a public hegrat a future date.

Public Hearing - No Smoking Ordinance

Susan Gretkowski stated that there is a proposed ordinance on smgaotithin 100 feet of the Municipal
Building. Brad Towne statedthat the State prohibits smoking within 50 feeanfentrance and he does
not think a 100 foot buffer is necessary when %@ $hould be far enough away from an entrance.eRab
Haskin asked where the 100 foot mark would be oniapal property?Jeff Schulz stated that the 100
feet from the main entrance of the municipal buiggivould put the mark approximately at the teleghon
pole at the edge of the pavemedbnathan Goddard agreed that 50 feet should be far enough away from
the entrance. Susan recused herself from votingieras her company represents R.J. ReynoldsioMot
by Brad Towne to adopt the Smoking Ordinance with the amendrag50 feet from the Municipal
Building. Second byonathan Goddard. Motion carried 3-0 with 1 abstaining. Jeff Schulz

stated that the next steps is to advertise a suynofidihe ordinance in the newspaper and if thereis
opposition to the ordinance, it would become lawhimi 60 days.

Municipal Building Improvements

Jeff Schulz stated that an RFP was advertised for energyectiatprovements to the Municipal Building.
He stated that he had received one proposal, wigghassed on tandrea Chandler. Jeff stated that
Andrea andGeoff Wilcox have been reviewing the proposal. He advisedtsed to table this item until
Andrea comes forward with further information on thisnite

New Business

Appointment of Police Chief

Jeff Schulz stated that the Town Charter has provisions toisgpphe Police Chief on an annual basis and
recommends the Board appoiBi¢l Wolfe as the Police Chief for another one year term tidvhdby
Jonathan Goddard to appointBill Wolfe as Chief of Police for a one year term. SeconRdlyerta
Haskin. Motion carried 4-0.

Appointment of Highway Superintendent

Jeff Schulz stated that the Town Charter has provision forBbard to appoint the Highway
Superintendent on an annual basis, and recommbatithe Board appoimichard Tetreault for a one
year term. Motion byonathan Goddard to appointRichard Tetreault as the Highway Superintendent
for a one year term. Second Rgberta Haskin. Motion carried 4-0.

Request to Work in ROW — Joseph Landry — Highlard.A

Jeff Schulz stated that this application to work in the rightvay to change the orientation of a culvert on
Highland Avenue byoseph Landry. He stated thaRichard Tetreault has reviewed the application and
recommends approval with the condition that theemlicomply with the Berlin Road Standarbr.




Landry stated that the grade of Highland Avenue is datow the top of the culvert and creates a hump in
the road. He stated that reorienting the culverild mitigate any damages to the road and the diilve

the future. Motion byBrad Towne to approve the application to work in the rightaafy byJoseph

Landry on Highland Avenue. Second bgnathan Goddard. Motion carried 4-0.

Town Administrator Report - Jeff Schulz

Jeff Schulz reminded the Board that the next meeting will iiblic hearing on the streetlight inventory
and will be held at the Elementary School. Heestdhat a letter has been sent to all residents and
businesses in the affected areadsff stated that he has received three emails frordeets in response to
the letters.

Jeff stated that there is a proposed agreement witGé¢méral Vermont Humane Society. He stated that
the Town has been entering such agreements witHihgne Society for a number of years and pays the
Humane Society a stipend of $2,000 per ydaff stated that the Humane Society provides a placthé
Animal Control Officer to bring stray pets and camjon animals until the owners can be identifietk
stated that the only change in this agreementigeb amount for the first day which increased from
$25.00 to $50.00.

Jeff reminded the Board that the Emergency ManagemeainThas scheduled a tabletop exercise for next
Monday. He stated that a venue has not been dkajen and he would let the Board know where it
would take place.

Jeff stated that the Assessor has filed the abstrabttiié Town Clerk and has scheduled grievances for
today. He stated that an advertisement regartimgtievances was not given to the newspaper, asit w
posted around TownJeff stated that advertising in the paper was not medday Statute, but was the
general practice in the pad®atti L ewis stated that after a resident gets the notice afigh in appraisal
they have 14 days to file a grievance with the Assg the Assessor has 14 days to hold the griegaantd
7 days after the Assessor closes the grievancedtrifile the grievance letter. She stated thatresident
has 14 days after they receive the grievance lettile an appeal with the Board of Civil Authgrit

Jeff stated that at a previous meeting the Board hpdiated a number of residents to the Fire District
Advisory Committee. He stated that he needs tynihiose individuals that they have been appointed
this committee and he believes that the outlinetwdt the committee is responsible for should goglo
with the letter. Susan Gretkowski stated that the Board needs to make it cleatthieagoal of the
committee is to make a recommendation to the Baminich can then be passed on to the Fire District.

Jeff stated that the Union Committee will be meeting/ednesdaySusan Gretkowski stated that the
Berlin Fire Department, the Barre Town EMS andDBligpatch Service were going to discuss their issues
and get back to the Boardeff stated that he has not heard anything from thottes as yet.Susan

stated that the Board needs to appoint someonmasgeéncy Management DirectorBsre Nelson has
resigned that position and advis#gdf to advertise that vacancy.

Approval of Licenses, Permits, Vouchers and Appiares
Motion byJonathan Goddard to approve the licenses, permits, vouchers anticagipns as presented.
Second byBrad Towne. Motion carried 4-0.

Approval of Minute(s) of Previous Meetings
After review of the minutes from May £6Susan Gretkowski noted some corrections. Motion by
Jonathan Goddard to approve the minutes with changes. Secon8riag Towne. Motion carried 4-0.

After review of the minutes from May 8pSusan noted some corrections. Motion Byad Towne to
approve the minutes with changes. Secondidmathan Goddard. Motion carried 3-0 with 1 abstaining.

Roundtable
Jonathan Goddard thanked the Road Crew for all of the work donecfmair the roads and culverts in
Town damaged in the flood.



Roberta Haskin thanked the Police Department for the quick respda homeowners in Berlin and their
help in evacuating residents.

Patti L ewis stated that Vermont Emergency Management has tleé¢d@erlin does not have a current
hazard mitigation plan in effect. She stated shah a plan would potentially address some ofgbesds at
the River Run Mobile Home Park as to relocatingmaventing future flooding in that areRatti stated

the VEM has contacted Central Vermont Regional itenCouncil regarding helping Berlin develop this
plan. She stated that CVRPC will be in touch wigff Schulz regarding a Hazard Mitigation Plan.

Executive Session — Contract, Personnel
Motion by Brad Towne to enter into executive sessi8econd byonathan Goddard.
Motion carried 4-0.

Motion byJonathan Goddard to exit out of executive session and adjourn thle&board. Second by
Roberta Haskin. Motion carried 4-0.

For the Select Board:

Rebecca Richardson, Administrative Assistant



